
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

Scrutiny 
Committee

Councillor J S Hawkes (Chairman)
Councillor M J Davis (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor A Bardoe Councillor M A Maddison
Councillor J Burrell Councillor T A Maddison
Councillor R M Currans Councillor Mrs J A Ozog
Councillor P Cutler Councillor J M Ozog
Councillor J A Hayes Councillor D J Reynolds
Councillor S R Jarnell Councillor A S Sandhu MBE
Councillor Mrs Maria B Kelly Councillor Mrs R F Storey
Councillor C S McLean

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on

Tuesday 11 July 2017

at 7 pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

Managing Director
3 July 2017



This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Tuesday 11 July 2017

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of any Grant(s) of Dispensation. 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2017 (Pages 1 - 
8)

4. Urgent Items 

The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda. 

5. To consider references from other Committees (IF ANY)) 

There are no references from other Committees at present.

6. Chairman's Update 

7. Regulation 9 Notice (Pages 9 - 
12)

To note the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice for the period 15 
June to 31 October 2017.

8. Garden City Project - Update from Ebbsfleet Development 
Corporation (EDC) 
Mr Paul Spooner, Interim CEO at EDC will update Members on 
developments with the Garden City Project since November 2016 
[Min. No. 20 refers].

9. Review of Updated Work Plan 2017-18 (Pages 13 
- 14)

Attached as Appendix A for consideration and approval by Members 



is an updated document, reflecting the Committee’s discussions on 
23 May 2017 [Min. No. 12 refers] and subsequent discussion 
between the Chairman and the Strategic Director (Internal Services).



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 23 May 2017 
at 7.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor J S Hawkes (Chairman)
Councillor M J Davis (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor A Bardoe
Councillor J Burrell
Councillor Mrs. R M Currans
Councillor P Cutler
Councillor S R Jarnell
Councillor T A Maddison
Councillor M A Maddison
Councillor Mrs. J A Ozog
Councillor J M Ozog
Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE
Councillor Mrs. R F Storey

ABSENT: Councillor J A Hayes
Councillor Mrs. M B Kelly
Councillor C S McLean
Councillor D J Reynolds

Dartford Borough Council Officers:-

Sarah Martin – Strategic Director (Internal Services)
Adrian Gowan – Policy and Corporate Support 

Manager
Stephen Jefferson – Leisure & Communities Officer
Alan Twyman – Member Services Manager

PRESENT TO RESPOND TO ISSUES RAISED BY THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:

Bill Archer – Chairman, Dartford Football Club
Jason Outram – Finance Director, Dartford Football 

Club
Tony Crafter – Contract Manager, Places for 

People Ltd
Dave Joliffe – Area Manager, Places for People 

Ltd

CABINET MEMBERS: Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Council Finances & Major Capital Projects

Also Present:             Councillor E A Lampkin



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 23 MAY 2017

2

1. MANCHESTER BOMB ATTACK - A MINUTE'S SILENCE 

The Chairman invited all present to stand and observe a minute’s silence for 
the victims of the suicide bomb attack at the Manchester Arena the previous 
evening.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors M B Kelly, C S 
McLean and D J Reynolds. 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

4. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 7 
FEBRUARY 2017 

Councillor T A Maddison confirmed that he had attended the last meeting of 
the Scrutiny Committee but was recorded in the minutes as having sent 
apologies and being substituted by Councillor M A Maddison who was in fact 
a member of the Committee in his own right. It was agreed that the minutes 
would be amended.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2017, as amended, be 
confirmed as an accurate record.

5. URGENT ITEMS 

There were no urgent items.

6. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY) 

There were no references from other committees.

7. CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE 

The Chairman announced that he had no update at this point in time but might 
raise a couple of matters during the item on the Committee’s Work Plan.

8. REGULATION 9 NOTICE 

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice for the period 18 April-31 August 
2017 be noted.



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 23 MAY 2017

3

9. PRINCES PARK  - ANNUAL UPDATE 

The Chairman welcomed Bill Archer, President of Dartford Football Club, and 
Jason Outram, Finance Director of Dartford Football Club, to the meeting. He 
reminded the Committee that the Council had a long standing relationship 
with the football club including providing financial support. The purpose of this 
item was to look at the relationship with the football club in terms of how this 
delivered the Council’s corporate objectives in terms of health and wellbeing, 
community outreach and development etc.

Mr Archer introduced a comprehensive report detailing Dartford Football 
Club’s many successes both on and off of the football pitch. The Club had 
come third in the National League South, narrowly missing out on promotion, 
and had a nationally recognised Academy, a strong Pre-Academy and a 
thriving girls structure and ladies teams. The Club was producing footballers 
on the fringe of international representative level and their goalkeeper was a 
full international player. The Club fed off its links with the local community and 
the players at all levels were largely home grown and coming through a strong 
support system. The Academy had proved a popular way for young players to 
hone their footballing abilities alongside continuing academic studies. All of 
the facilities at the Club were well used including the golf club, where in 
addition to normal golf, footgolf was proving increasingly popular, and the 
community pitches and mini-pitches were used by over 30 local clubs in 
addition to over 200 casual bookings from local people.

The Chairman noted that the current SLA’s with the Club had ended and 
asked whether the Council would be providing a grant to the Football Club 
moving forward. The Strategic Director (Internal Services) confirmed that a 
grant of £90,000 had been agreed for the current financial year and would be 
reviewed next year. The Chairman asked what the funding was used for.

Mr Archer explained that the Football Club was expensive to run and that 
running the golf club was particularly expensive. He confirmed that the 
physical fabric of the Club was good with an excellent playing surface 
following drainage work, the problems with the roof appeared to have been 
remedied and the bar areas and stairwells were currently being decorated.  
However, the Club’s revenue would not cover its costs and if the grant wasn’t 
provided then the Club would have to cut back significantly on aspects of its 
work with the local community.    The Academy had gone from a small scale 
arrangement to becoming nationally recognised for its work and the Club had 
invested its own money in adding a 65 seater stand on the community pitch 
which was used by local clubs. He briefly outlined the work carried out by the 
Club at outreach centres in Dartford and Swanscombe and the provision of 
free football sessions to 5 primary schools and other work with local schools 
in addition to hosting healthy living activities. The club manager devoted a lot 
of energy to this work and took first team players with him to these outreach 
sessions to interact with local children and stimulate interest.

The Chairman stated this it appeared that the Council grant was provided in 
recognition of Princes Park as a community asset and asked whether any 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 23 MAY 2017

4

targets had been set in the SLA with the Club to demonstrate this. It was 
confirmed that there were no targets as such but that the community and 
outreach work outlined by Mr Archer and contained in the report met the 
Council’s expectations.

The Committee asked whether there was any other way that the Council 
could assist the Club to raise its revenue outside of the grant it provided. Mr 
Archer confirmed that the Club would benefit from any wider promotion as 
many people still did not know about the existence of the facilities at the 
football club and the golf club, particularly with many new residents coming to 
the area. He added that in terms of the Club being able to do more work with 
the community, a number of schools had been offered free use of the football 
pitches but were unable to take up this offer because they could not afford to 
transport their pupils to the ground and wondered whether the Council might 
be able to provide some help. Officers advised that schools were not the 
responsibility of the Council.   

The Chairman thanked Mr Archer and Mr Outram for attending. It was clear 
that the Council grant was provided in recognition of the role of a community 
asset and that this was being used for community development and outreach.

RESOLVED:

That the Princes Park Annual Report 2016-2017 be noted.   

 

10. REFURBISHMENT OF FAIRFIELD POOL AND LEISURE CENTRE 

The Chairman welcomed Dave Joliffe, Area Manager, and Tony Crafter, 
Contract Manager, from Places for People Ltd which was the leisure operator 
of the Fairfield Pool and Leisure Centre. He also welcomed Councillor Andy 
Lloyd, Cabinet member for Strategic Council Finances & Major Capital 
Projects, to the meeting.

The Chairman explained that the Committee was not scrutinising the day to 
day running of the Fairfield Pool and Leisure Centre but was looking at the 
outcomes for the Council arising from the award of the management contract 
to Places for People in terms of how this delivered the Council’s corporate 
objectives and return on the £12million cost of the refurbishment. He asked 
how PfP felt that the first year of operation had gone and how they found their 
working relationship with the Council.

Mr Joliffe confirmed that PfP had had an excellent 15 months and had a very 
strong working relationship with Dartford Borough Council. The first six 
months in particular had been a learning curve to establish services and 
classes to meet customer expectations. There had been very high demand for 
all of the facilities and usage was already up by over 60% on previous use of 
the old leisure centre. Membership across all headings exceeded 
expectations and there had been 450,000 visits to the site  with over 100,000 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 23 MAY 2017

5

gym visits and 70,000 swimming lesson visits.  Mr Crafter provided further 
details on how the facility was delivering community need with over 10,000 
swimming lessons for school pupils and the 94 members that Fairfield had 
inherited on the Health Matters programme from Acacia Hall had risen to 201 
by the end of March 2017. PfP had also introduced free swimming for under 8 
year olds.

The Committee asked about projections on Fairfield’s capacity for the next 5 
years. Mr Joliffe confirmed that there were already pinch points at peak times 
with the gym near to capacity, but possibly able to add 300 more members 
once plans to extend the gym into the Spin Class area were realised, and the 
swimming pool was at 94% usage with little scope for extension.    Although 
the much higher usage was generating more income it was also necessitating 
more expenditure on running costs and maintenance so that PfP’s profits 
were largely in line with original expectations.   It was important that PfP 
continued to offer the best facilities locally as new low cost competition could 
dramatically impact on membership numbers.

The Chairman asked how PfP was delivering the intended outcomes 
envisaged by the Council when it placed the contract and what these 
outcomes were. It was confirmed that the original contract referred to the 
Council’s Health and Wellbeing Plan and to the Corporate Plan. The 
Chairman asked how PfP was delivering against the following objectives: 
promoting active lifestyles, promoting community cohesion, partner 
engagement, quality of service, environmental sustainability and health and 
wellbeing, and whether an outcomes scorecard had been produced.

The Sports and Communities Officer advised Members that there was no 
outcome scorecard for year one but there would be for future years. The first 
year had been about establishing the service and there would need to be a 
discussion on future expectations. The outcomes for year one were the ones 
specified in the contract specification.

The Chairman expressed disappointment that there was no outcomes 
scorecard to make an assessment of the delivery of the Council’s objectives 
from the contract. He asked how the achievement of the objective of 
encouraging a more active population could be demonstrated and how far this 
was as a result of the services provided by PfP at Fairfield.

The Policy and Corporate Support Manager informed the Committee that 
Sports England produced annual figures assessing how active the population 
in each area was. Whilst not all of the activity in Dartford would be attributable 
to Fairfield, other Clubs and facilities having a role to play, it was clear that 
Fairfield would be a significant contributor as the largest and most used 
leisure facility in the area. PfP had already demonstrated a 60% increase in 
the usage of the new leisure centre and this could only contribute to 
promoting physical activity in the community. Whilst the old Fairfield had been 
poorly used and cost the Council money the new Fairfield facilities were being 
well used, exceeding expectations and generating income for the Council.



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 23 MAY 2017

6

The Chairman asked how performance could be assessed in terms of 
promoting community cohesion and benefitting target groups.

Mr Joliffe explained that the objective was to make Fairfield accessible to 
everyone in society and the report provided statistical data on usage by 
different age groups and by the disabled. He highlighted the Chairobics wheel 
chair classes, increased wheelchair access and attendance at Health Matters 
sessions, Rebound Therapy and archery for disabled adults, the junior and 
adult weight management programmes, and Walking football. He also 
highlighted PfP’s links with the local CCG, Public Health and Porchlight 
partners to develop targeted activities.   Mr Crafter expanded on some of the 
open days that had been held, programmes to deal with stress, sleep 
awareness and dementia week. PfP collected considerable data across all of 
these activities and the strength of its data collection would improve over time.

The Chairman expressed concern that he had no meaningful data on which to 
judge the delivery of the outcomes that the Council wanted for the borough 
arising from the contract with PfP other than a comparison with data for the 
old Fairfield Pool and the new Fairfield. The Policy and Corporate Support 
Manager reminded Members of the wide range of services and facilities 
available at Fairfield, some at low cost and some free of charge in an effort to 
make the facility accessible to all. This was in line with many other Council 
activities such as the St George’s Day parade, the Dartford Festival, band 
concerts and Theatre in the Park which were designed to bring the community 
together.

A Member asked for clarification about whether there were any benchmarks 
for staff development and environmental and energy emissions.

Mr Joliffe stated that the facility was already very efficient in terms of CO2 
emissions and that PfP was considering investing £100,000 to install a CHP 
unit and would be reducing energy consumption by fitting LED lights in the 
pool area, Sports Hall and Studio at a cost of £30,000. In terms of staff 
development PfP was a big company with a strong commitment to its staff 
with over 500 employees on apprenticeship schemes, with 4 at Fairfield, and 
well established management training arrangements. The company also 
looked to recruit people locally thereby further strengthening links with the 
local communities.

A Member asked about initial complaints relating to over-zealous parking 
enforcement at Fairfield and in particular parents returning to pick up their 
children being issued with penalties for returning to the car park within the 2 
hour prohibition window.  Mr Crafter explained that there had been some 
initial problems with the enforcement system, mainly because people either 
forgot to register their vehicle upon arrival or input an incorrect registration 
number. The time slot for a visit to Fairfield had also been extended to 3 
hours. These measures appeared to have resolved the initial problems and in 
any event PfP had a good relationship with the parking enforcement 
contractor and would rescind penalties where a mistake occurred.



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 23 MAY 2017

7

A Member pointed to the need to be able to evidence the good work being 
undertaken on areas such as public health and another Member pointed to 
the performance data that had been reported providing the framework for 
targets for future years moving forward.

The Chairman thanked Mr Joliffe and Mr Crafter for attending the meeting. He 
had understood that during year 1 an outcomes scorecard and performance 
targets would have been set and was disappointed that this had not been the 
case as there was little point in the Committee scrutinising these outcomes 
unless there was more substantive data to look at. He felt that this might be a 
matter for the Policy Overview Committee to identify and establish a set of 
outcomes against which the deliverability of the Council’s objectives for the 
contract could be assessed.

RESOLVED:

That the Fairfield Yearly Report April 2016-March 2017 be noted.          

11. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17 

The draft Annual Scrutiny Committee Report for 2016-17 was agreed 
unchanged for submission to the next meeting of the General Assembly of the 
Council. The Chairman thanked the Committee Co-Ordinator, David Hook, for 
his support to the Committee and thanked other officers and the members of 
the Committee for their hard work and input. 

RESOLVED:

That the draft Annual Scrutiny Committee Report for 2016-17 be agreed and 
submitted to the next meeting of the General Assembly of the Council.

12. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2017-18 

The Chairman stated that, in light of the Committee’s line of questioning on 
the Princes Park Annual Update and in the absence of any “hard” targets 
being set for Dartford Football Club to meet in respect of their receipt of a 
grant from the Council, he questioned whether this should remain as a 
standing item on the Committee’s Work Plan for future years. He pointed out 
that the item could still be drawn down if it was not included as a standing 
item. The Committee felt that it should continue to remain in the future Work 
Plan whilst the Council continued to provide a grant to Dartford Football Club 
given that it had been confirmed that the Club would be receiving a grant of 
£90,000 for 2017/18.

The Chairman also stated that he would like to scrutinise the performance of 
Kingdom under the Litter Picking contract but noted that the Leader of the 
Council had announced a review of this and, depending upon the terms of 
reference for this review, it might or might not be necessary for this matter to 
be scrutinised at a future meeting.



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 23 MAY 2017

8

The Committee agreed to move the scheduling of the Orchard Theatre Annual 
Report 2016-17 from the November meeting to the meeting on 6 February 
2018 so that it could be considered at the same time as the Theatre’s 
accounts.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee’s draft Work plan be amended by moving consideration of 
the Orchard Theatre Annual Report 2016-17 to the Committee’s meeting on 6 
February 2018.

    

The meeting closed at 8.33 pm

Councillor J S Hawkes
CHAIRMAN



15 June 2017 - 31 October 2017

1 of 3

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

LIST OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS – REGULATION 9 NOTICE

This document lists all key decisions due  to be taken  in the forthcoming 4 months in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. It also lists and contains particulars of 
any items where it is likely that the public will be excluded because consideration of the matter in public would disclose confidential of 
exempt information. The reasons for going into closed session are given in each case. An updated list will be published monthly.

All decisions are made by Cabinet collectively.

Cabinet Members:

Councillor J A Kite, MBE, Portfolio: Leader & Overall Strategy
Councillor C J Shippam, Portfolio: Deputy Leader, Strategic Service Provision & Town Centre
Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE, Portfolio: Community Development
Councillor P F Coleman, Portfolio: Front Line Services, Customer Champion & Housing
Councillor K M Kelly, Portfolio: Transport and Infrastructure
Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio: Strategic Council Finances & Major Capital Projects
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio: Events, Leisure & Heritage

All of the reports contained in this list, where open to the public, will be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 5 
clear days before the day of the meeting or, if later, whenever they become available. All reports provide details of any background 
documents which have been relied upon to a material degree during production of the report, or relied upon when formulating 
recommendations or options for decision. Hard copies or extracts from these reports can be obtained on request by emailing 
memberservices@dartford.gov.uk.

This notice supersedes all previous notices.

http://www.dartford.gov.uk/
mailto:memberservices@dartford.gov.uk


2 of 3

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Works to the Civic Centre

This report seeks approval from 
Members to support the 
refurbishment needed to the Civic 
Centre and commence the 
procurement process needed to 
appoint Contractors to deliver the 
work.

Cabinet
29 Jun 2017

Paul Koster, Housing 
Maintenance Manager
Tel: 01322 343623
paul.koster@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN

Write-off of CIL Charge

To consider exercising the Council’s 
discretion to write off a CIL charge 
for the reasons outlined in the 
exempt appendix.

Cabinet
29 Jun 2017

Teresa Ryszkowska, Head of 
Regeneration
Tel: 01322 343631
teresa.ryszkowska@dartford.gov.
uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)

Kent Thameside Strategic 
Transport Programme Annual 
Report

The report sets out progress over the 
year on the Kent Thameside 
Strategic Transport Programme and 
seeks agreement to the Forward 
Delivery Programme for 2017/18.

Cabinet
27 Jul 2017

There is consultation on 
the Forward Delivery 
Programme with key 
stakeholders through 
the STP Steering Group. 
Public consultation 
takes place on individual 
schemes within the 
Programme before they 
are implemented.  

Teresa Ryszkowska, Head of 
Regeneration
Tel: 01322 343631
teresa.ryszkowska@dartford.gov.
uk

OPEN



3 of 3

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Primary Authority - Support for 
Local Businesses - Environmental 
Health Partnership

This report considers an opportunity 
to support local businesses using the 
“Primary Authority” (PA) Scheme by 
means of a partnership approach 
involving the Environmental Health 
Partnership and Kent Trading 
Standards.

Cabinet
27 Jul 2017

Annie Sargent, Environmental 
Health Manager
Tel: 01322 343085
annie.sargent@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN

Stone Lodge - Appropriation for 
Planning Purposes

  

Cabinet
27 Jul 2017

Appropriation for 
planning purposes to be 
advertised post in 
principle decision by 
Cabinet.

Marie Kelly-Stone, Head of Legal 
Services
Tel: 01322 343634
marie.kelly-
stone@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN

Write-off of National Non-
Domestic Rates

To consider writing-off Non Domestic 
Rate debts where it has not been 
possible to obtain payment because 
of insolvency, because the ratepayer 
cannot be traced or where the debt 
is otherwise irrecoverable.

Cabinet
27 Jul 2017

Sue Cressall, Revenues Manager
Tel: 01732 227041
sue.cressall@sevenoaks.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)





Appendix A 

Updated SCRUTINY WORK PLAN 2017-18

23 May 2017 11 July 2017 14 November 2017 6 February 2018 17 April 2018

Princes Park 
Annual Update 

and Forward Plan

Garden City Master 
Transport Plan –
Update from EDC 

CEO

Update: Dartford 
Cricket Club, 
Hesketh Park

Orchard Theatre 
Annual Report and  
Accounts 2016-17 

Princes Park 
Annual Update

Refurbishment of 
Fairfield Pool & 
Leisure Centre 

[D/D]

Reg. 9 Notice D/D - 
Review/Update 
Council Litter-

Picking Contract 
(t.b.c.)

Draw-Down(s) – 
t.b.a.

Draw-Down(s) – 
t.b.a.

Scrutiny 
Committee Annual 

Report 2016-17

Review Work Plan
2017-18

Other Draw-
Down(s) – t.b.a.

Review 2017-18 
Work Plan

Consider Work 
Plan for 2018-19

Draft Work Plan 
2017-18

Reg. 9 Notice Reg. 9 Notice Reg.9 Notice

Reg. 9 Notice Review Work Plan
2017-18




	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2017
	7 Regulation 9 Notice
	9 Review of Updated Work Plan 2017-18

